
VACAVILLE LIBRARY COMMISSION 

June 12, 2023 - 6:30 p.m. 

LOCATION:  Vacaville Cultural Center Library - 1020 Ulatis Drive, Vacaville, CA 95687 

The County of Solano, in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, will provide accommodations for 
persons with disabilities who attend public meetings.  If you wish to attend this meeting and you will require assistance to 
participate, please call the Supervising Librarian at 1-866-572-7587 at least 48 hours in advance of the event to make 
reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to this meeting. 

Non-confidential materials related to an item on this Agenda submitted to the Board after distribution of the agenda packet 
are available for public inspection at the Vacaville Cultural Center Library, 1020 Ulatis Drive, Vacaville, CA during normal 
business hours. 

AGENDA 

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. ROLL CALL AND ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM

3. INTRODUCTIONS

4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES of March 13, 2023, May 8, 2023, and May 11, 2023 (Special Meeting) -
Attachment 1- ACTION

5. APPROVAL OF AGENDA – ACTION

6. COMMENTS FROM THE FLOOR (3-minute time limit per individual)

Items on the Agenda – Persons wishing to speak to items on the agenda should so indicate to the 
President of the Commission at this time.  You will be given an opportunity to speak on the subject at the 
time the item is discussed by the Commission.

Items Not on the Agenda – Persons wishing to speak to items not on the agenda should so indicate to the 
President of the Commission at this time.  Subjects not on the agenda may be introduced at this time, but 
no action may be taken on them at this meeting.  Please stand and state your name and address.

7. CORRESPONDENCE

8. SUPERVISING LIBRARIANS’ REPORTS – Attachment 2

9. OLD BUSINESS

New Commissioner – The Commission will discuss and may take action to fill the vacancies due to the 
resignation of Dave McCallum and the fulfillment three consecutive three-year terms by Beatryce Clark. 
ACTION

10. NEW BUSINESS

District Audit - The Commission will receive a report for the Library District for the years ending June 
30, 2020 and June 30, 2021 and may take action. Attachment 3 - ACTION

FY 2023-2024 Proposed Budget Update - The Commission will hear a budget update and may take 
action. Attachment 4 - ACTION

Election of President - Commissioners will elect a President for the Fiscal Year 2023-2024. ACTION 



Vacaville Library Commission 
June 12, 2023 
Page 2 

Commissioner Re-appointment – Commissioners will discuss and may take action on recommending a 
2nd term for a three-year re-appointment of Commissioner Peggy Rollins. ACTION 

11. ITEMS OF INTEREST TO THE COMMISSION

12. DATE OF NEXT MEETING:   September 11, 2023

13. ADJOURNMENT



Minutes of the 
Vacaville Library Commission  

March 13, 2023 

CALL TO ORDER 

Ms. Valdez called the meeting to order at 6:35 p.m. 

ROLL CALL AND ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM 

Members Present 

Cathy Valdez 

Beatryce Clark 

Steve Vidmar 

Members Absent 

Dave McCallum 

Peggy Rollins 

Others Present 

Suzanne Olawski, Director of Library Services, Solano County Library 

Nancy Redfield, Branch Manager, Solano County Library 

Brenda Guzman, Office Assistant II, Solano County Library 

INTRODUCTIONS 

None. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

The minutes of the meeting of January 9, 2023 Regular Meeting were unanimously approved on motion of Ms. 

Clark and seconded by Mr. Vidmar.  Motion carried.  So ordered by 3‐0 vote. 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA  

The March 13, 2023 agenda was unanimously approved on motion of Mr. Vidmar and seconded by Ms. Clark.  

Motion carried.  So ordered by 3‐0 vote. 

COMMENTS FROM THE FLOOR 

Items on the agenda 

None. 

CORRESPONDENCE 

None. 

LIBRARIANS’ REPORTS 

In addition  to  the  librarians’  reports, Ms. Olawski updated  the Commission on  the Polaris database migration 

and  planning  being  done  to  upgrade  the  library’s  IT  infrastructure,  such  as  updating  routers,  switches,  and  

security equipment. The project is expected to being in the fall.  The library is receiving ARPA funds through the 

Attachment 1



2 

County  Department  of  IT  and will  add  300  5G mobile  hotspots,  25  Chromebooks with  built‐in  hotspots,  250 

tablets with built‐in hotspots, and 1 mobile router for its forthcoming outreach van.  The tablets will be loaded 

with either literacy resources to be lent out to learners waiting for a tutor or children’s resources to be lent out 

to Solano County Library card holders.  The library expanded access to New York Times to include the Cooking, 

Games,  and  Sports modules. GetSetUp, online  classes  for older  adults,  and HelpNow, 24/7 online  tutoring,  is 

being offered through the California State Library.   

With the recent heavy rains, both Vacaville Town Square and Cultural Center libraries had some leaks, which are 

being addressed.  Nine HVAC units will be replaced at Town Square Library.  The projected is funded in the FY23 

budget and installation is expected late fall, as there is a 38‐week lead time for equipment. 

Ms. Olawski  stated that  the design team working on the proposed expansion of  the Cultural Center Library  is 

exploring an option of a smaller addition that would meet the needs of the library and not need to incur debt for 

the Library District.   She will bring more information to the Commission and schedule a special meeting of the 

Library District Board to update and receive direction for proceeding with the project. 

OLD BUSINESS 

None. 

NEW BUSINESS 

None. 

ITEMS OF INTEREST TO THE COMMISSION 

None. 

DATE OF NEXT MEETING 

The next Vacaville Library Commission meeting will be held on Monday, May 8, 2023, at 6:30 p.m.  

ADJOURNMENT 

Meeting adjourned at 7:49 p.m.   

‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ 

Suzanne Olawski, Director of Library Services 



Minutes of the 
Vacaville Library Commission  

May 8, 2023 

CALL TO ORDER 

Ms. Valdez called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

ROLL CALL AND ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM 

Members Present 

Cathy Valdez 

Peggy Rollins 

Members Absent 

Beatryce Clark 

Steve Vidmar 

Others Present 

Suzanne Olawski, Director of Library Services, Solano County Library 

Lisa Lin, Admin Services Manager, Solano County Library 

Nancy Redfield, Branch Manager, Solano County Library 

Mike Perkins, Supervising Librarian 

Tim Reynolds, Capitol Projects Coordinator, Solano County 

Dave McCallum, Vacaville Unified School District Library District Board 

Cathy Sheldon, Office Assistant, Solano County Library 

INTRODUCTIONS 

None. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

No action was taken on the meeting minutes of March 13, 2023.  

APPROVAL OF AGENDA  

No action was taken on the May 8, 2023 agenda.    

COMMENTS FROM THE FLOOR 

Mr. Leo Escarcega  inquired  if electric vehicle stations will be  installed  in the parking  lot of  the cultural central 

plaza.  He also stated he would like to see the bike racks be relocated near the entrance of the library. 

CORRESPONDENCE 

Ms. Olawski shared she received email correspondence from Mr. McCallum announcing his resignation from the 

Vacaville Library Commission.   Ms. Olawski also stated she  received a  letter  from the Friends of  the Vacaville 



2 

Library  in  support  of  a  permanent  Friends  of  the  Library  bookstore  as  part  of  the  Cultural  Center  Library 

expansion. 

LIBRARIANS’ REPORTS 

The Commission reviewed attached librarians’ reports. 

OLD BUSINESS 

Mr.  Tim  Reynolds,  Capital  Projects  Coordinator,  Solano  County,  gave  the  Commission  an  update  on  the 

proposed Vacaville Cultural Center Library expansion project.  Presentation attached. 

NEW BUSINESS 

a. The Commission did not discuss or take action on the FY 2023‐2024 Proposed Budget.

b. The  Commission  did  not  take  action  on  the  resignation  of  Dave  McCallum  from  the  Vacaville  Library

Commission.

c. The Commission will discuss the process for filling vacancies at the June meeting.

ITEMS OF INTEREST TO THE COMMISSION 

None. 

DATE OF NEXT MEETING 

The next Vacaville Library Commission meeting will be held on Monday, June 12, 2023 at 6:30 p.m.  

ADJOURNMENT 

Meeting adjourned at 8:25 p.m.   

‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ 

Suzanne Olawski, Director of Library Services 



Vacaville Cultural Center 
Library Renovation

May 8, 2023

DEPARTENT OF GENERAL SERVICES
Capital Projects Management Division



Project Background



Project Goals

1. Upgrade Building Infrastructure
• Repair or replace HVAC, Kalwall, roof, windows, glazing, roof, cracks

2. Elevate Community Experience
• Larger meeting / multipurpose room
• More group study areas
• More private study and quiet areas
• A single-service desk for customer assistance
• Improved age-level spaces and enlarged children’s area
• Improved acoustic control
• Improved display of collections
• Dedicated Friends of the Library bookstore

3. Overall Refresh
• Refresh finishes, fixtures, and furniture
• More efficient use of staff workroom space



Requested 
Actions

• Recommend approval of the proposed schematic design for 
renovation of the Library with a 2,500 sq. ft. addition

• Alternatively, recommend providing direction to staff to explore 
options to alter the proposed design and to reduce or 
eliminate the proposed 2,500 sq. ft. addition.

• Recommend approval of ‘Construction Manager at Risk’ 
(CMAR) as a project delivery method for construction of the 
renovation and addition.

• Recommend delegating authority to the Library Director to 
issue a contract to Gilbane Building Company for pre-
construction services leading to production of a Guaranteed 
Maximum Price (GMP) (pre-construction services only)

• Recommend delegating to the Library Director to issue a 
contract to architect, Cannon/Parkin Inc. for Design and 
construction management services 



Next Steps

• Library Commission Outreach 
– June through December 

• Request for Board Approval of 
CMAR construction contract -
anticipated January 2024



Delivery –
Construction 

Manager at 
Risk (CMAR)

• Construction Manager provides pre-
construction services in preparation of 
Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP)

• CMAR allows increased control of budget 
with greater certainty of actual construction 
cost

• CMAR is a form of ‘Design Build’ that allows 
enhanced control of the design during all 
phases



Design 
Development

(Original footprint of 
planned addition, 1992)



Initial Concept Design, 2017



Lot Line Adjustment, August 2019



Existing 
Conditions



Community 
Engagement



Program Scoping Study, June 2022



















Funding Sources

FY2022/2023 Budget

Reserve – Unrestricted $12,793,829 Can be used for renovation 
and addition

Reserve – Restricted (PFF) $2,218,161 Only can be used for growth -
addition

$15,011,990

Fund 427 - Contingency $5,765,809 Can be used towards project



Proposed Project Budget



CMAR 
Delivery:

• Requires prevailing wage for all trade

• Allows increased control and coordination 
of subs 

• Union labor will be used for key subs. 

• A Project Labor Agreement will not be 
necessary



Schedule



Requested 
Actions

• Recommend approval of the proposed schematic design 
for renovation of the Library with a 2,500 sq. ft. addition

• Alternatively, recommend providing direction to staff to 
explore options to alter the proposed design and to 
reduce or eliminate the proposed 2,500 sq. ft. addition.

• Recommend approval of ‘Construction Manager at Risk’ 
(CMAR) as a project delivery method for construction of 
the renovation and addition.

• Recommend delegating authority to the Library Director 
to issue a contract to Gilbane Building Company for pre-
construction services leading to production of a 
Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) (pre-construction 
services only)

• Recommend delegating to the Library Director to issue a 
contract to architect, Cannon/Parkin Inc. for Design and 
construction management services 



Next Steps

• Library Commission Outreach 
– June through December 

• Request for Board Approval of 
CMAR construction contract is 
anticipated January, 2024



Questions?



Minutes of the 
Vacaville Library Commission Special Meeting 

May 11, 2023 

  
CALL TO ORDER 

Ms. Valdez called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m. 

 

ROLL CALL AND ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM 

Members Present 

Cathy Valdez 

Beatryce Clark 

Peggy Rollins   

 

Members Absent 

Steve Vidmar 

   

Others Present 

Suzanne Olawski, Director of Library Services, Solano County Library 

Lisa Lin, Admin Services Manager, Solano County Library 

Nancy Redfield, Branch Manager, Solano County Library 

Mike Perkins, Supervising Librarian 

Tim Reynolds, Capital Projects Coordinator, Solano County 

Cathy Sheldon, Office Assistant, Solano County Library 

 

COMMENTS FROM THE FLOOR 

None. 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

a.  Expansion of the Cultural Center Library ‐ The Commission will discuss the proposed expansion and may take 

action. 

  Mr.  Tim  Reynolds,  Capital  Projects  Coordinator,  Solano  County,  gave  a  presentation  on  the  proposed 

expansion of the Cultural Center Library.  Presentation attached. 

  Ms. Rollins moved to recommend the Board approve the proposed schematic design for renovation of the 

Library  with  a  2,500  sq.  ft.  addition  as  presented,  ‘Construction  Manager  at  Risk’  (CMAR)  as  a  project 

delivery method  for  construction  of  the  renovation  and  addition,  and  delegating  authority  to  the  Library 

Director to issue a contract to Gilbane Building Company for pre‐construction services leading to production 

of  a  Guaranteed  Maximum  Price  (GMP)  (pre‐construction  services  only);  Ms.  Clark  seconded.    Motion 

carried. So order 3‐0 vote. 

   
Yes Peggy Rollins 

  Yes Beatryce Clark 
  Yes Cathy Valdez 



 

2 
 

b.  FY 2023‐2024 Proposed Budget ‐ The Commission will discuss and may take action on the proposed budget 

for FY 2023‐2024 

  Ms. Olawski presented  the FY 2023‐2024 proposed budget.   On motion of Ms. Clark and  seconded by Ms. 

Rollins, the commission approved the FY 2023‐2024 proposed budget.  So order by 3‐0 vote. 

 

Yes Cathy Valdez 
Yes Beatryce Clark 
Yes Peggy Rollins 
 

c.  Accept the resignation of Dave McCallum from the Vacaville Library Commission. 

     Ms.  Clark moved  to  accept  the  resignation  of  Dave McCallum  from  the  Vacaville  Library  Commission; Ms. 

Rollins seconded.  Motion carried.  So ordered by 3‐0 vote. 

 

  Yes Beatryce Clark 
  Yes Cathy Valdez 
  Yes Peggy Rollins 
 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

Meeting adjourned at 5:35 p.m.   

 

 

 

 

‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ 

Suzanne Olawski, Director of Library Services 



Vacaville Cultural Center 
Library Renovation

May 8, 2023

DEPARTENT OF GENERAL SERVICES
Capital Projects Management Division



Project Background
2015 Proposed expansion discussions begin with the Library District Commission and Library District

Board; project funding sources discussed

2016 Discussions with City of Vacaville and Solano County Capital Projects

2017 Architect is selected for scoping and conceptual designs; addition cost estimated at $6M and 
any infrastructure improvements may double the cost

Library District Commission and Library District Board each approve by motion a conceptual design 
for an expansion of 8,300 GSF of new area

2018 Lot line adjustment undertaken; facility condition assessment conducted

2019 Library District Commission and Library District Board each approve by motion the Lot Line 
Adjustment between the Library District and the City of Vacaville

2022 Facility condition assessment and project cost estimates updated; public input conducted

Revised project cost for an expansion of 8,300 GSF and renovation is $22M

Library District Commission approve by motion a modified expansion option

Library District Board provides direction the project should not incur any debt for the Library 
District 



Project Goals

1. Upgrade Building Infrastructure
• Repair or replace HVAC, Kalwall, roof, windows, glazing, roof, cracks

2. Elevate Community Experience
• Larger meeting / multipurpose room
• More group study areas
• More private study and quiet areas
• A single-service desk for customer assistance
• Improved age-level spaces and enlarged children’s area
• Improved acoustic control
• Improved display of collections
• Dedicated Friends of the Library bookstore

3. Overall Refresh
• Refresh finishes, fixtures, and furniture
• More efficient use of staff workroom space



Requested 
Actions

• Recommend approval of the proposed schematic design for 
renovation of the Library with a 2,500 sq. ft. addition

• Alternatively, recommend providing direction to staff to explore 
options to alter the proposed design and to reduce or 
eliminate the proposed 2,500 sq. ft. addition.

• Recommend approval of ‘Construction Manager at Risk’ 
(CMAR) as a project delivery method for construction of the 
renovation and addition.

• Recommend delegating authority to the Library Director to 
issue a contract to Gilbane Building Company for pre-
construction services leading to production of a Guaranteed 
Maximum Price (GMP) (pre-construction services only)

• Recommend delegating to the Library Director to issue a 
contract to architect, Cannon/Parkin Inc. for Design and 
construction management services 



Next Steps

• Library Commission Outreach 
– June through December 

• Request for Board Approval of 
CMAR construction contract -
anticipated January 2024



Delivery –
Construction 

Manager at 
Risk (CMAR)

• Construction Manager provides pre-
construction services in preparation of 
Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP)

• CMAR allows increased control of budget 
with greater certainty of actual construction 
cost

• CMAR is a form of ‘Design Build’ that allows 
enhanced control of the design during all 
phases



Design 
Development

(Original footprint of 
planned addition, 1992)



Initial Concept Design, 2017



Lot Line Adjustment, August 2019



Existing 
Conditions



Community 
Engagement



Program Scoping Study, June 2022



















Funding Sources

FY2022/2023 Budget

Reserve – Unrestricted $12,793,829 Can be used for renovation 
and addition

Reserve – Restricted (PFF) $2,218,161 Only can be used for growth -
addition

$15,011,990

Fund 427 - Contingency $5,765,809 Can be used towards project



Proposed Project Budget



CMAR 
Delivery:

• Requires prevailing wage for all trade

• Allows increased control and coordination 
of subs 

• Union labor will be used for key subs. 

• A Project Labor Agreement will not be 
necessary



Schedule



Requested 
Actions

• Recommend approval of the proposed schematic design 
for renovation of the Library with a 2,500 sq. ft. addition

• Alternatively, recommend providing direction to staff to 
explore options to alter the proposed design and to 
reduce or eliminate the proposed 2,500 sq. ft. addition.

• Recommend approval of ‘Construction Manager at Risk’ 
(CMAR) as a project delivery method for construction of 
the renovation and addition.

• Recommend delegating authority to the Library Director 
to issue a contract to Gilbane Building Company for pre-
construction services leading to production of a 
Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) (pre-construction 
services only)

• Recommend delegating to the Library Director to issue a 
contract to architect, Cannon/Parkin Inc. for Design and 
construction management services 



Next Steps

• Library Commission Outreach 
– June through December 

• Request for Board Approval of 
CMAR construction contract is 
anticipated January, 2024



Questions?



Librarian’s Report to the Vacaville Library Commission 
Vacaville Public Library-Cultural Center 

June 2023 

Greetings, Commissioners: 

Summer is here! We have a variety of activities and events planned for people of all ages. All 
ages are welcome to participate, from newborn babies to grandparents. This year, kids who 
participate will receive a free book when they sign up and when they finish. Everyone can 
earn a custom enamel pin and will be entered into several raffles for other prizes. Throughout 
the summer, we have many events planned, including musical performances, wild animals, 
pizza making, and game nights. All of the events for every branch are available on our 
website. 

The library welcomed Teresa, a new adult librarian, at the end of May. We are excited to 
have her and she is hard at work learning the ropes for adult programming. She will spend 
the next month or so in training, meeting with other adult librarians, and getting to know the 
community. Her predecessor still works for Solano County Library and they have been 
coordinating the continuation of some of the projects he had started before transferring to a 
different position. 

Events to Highlight: 

Conservation Ambassadors Wild animals – Tuesday, June 13 at 10am. Join us for a visit 
from a variety of wild animals! Learn about them, see them up close, and even get a chance 
to pet some of them! 

Big Messy Art Day – Tuesday, June 20 at 10am. We’re emptying out our craft supplies! 
Kids will paint, make bubbles, decorate, and anything else they want to do with the supplies 
available—and afterwards, we’ll hose down the courtyard to clean up the mess. 

After Hours Teen Game Night – Friday, June 23 at 5:30pm. Back by popular demand, 
we’ll have Nintendo Switch, board games, roleplaying games, and plenty of snacks! We host 
this event after the library closes so that teens can have a space to themselves. 

Community Pizza Making Night – Tuesday, August 15 at 6pm. Local pizza enthusiast Jeff 
Christian will be outside the library with a wood-fired pizza oven to lead us in a 
demonstration of sourdough pizza making. He’ll even have enough ingredients to share pizza 
with the first 100 participants! 

Mike Perkins 
Supervising Librarian 
Vacaville Public Library-Cultural Center 

Attachment 2



Librarian’s Report to the Vacaville Library Commission 
Vacaville Town Square Library (VTS) 

June 12, 2023 

Greetings, Commissioners: 

From April to May, VTS welcomed 15,954 visitors and circulated 31,323 items.  

During the reporting period, staff presented 30 storytimes with 953 in attendance. 1,935 
children and teens participated in library programs including Storytimes (Baby Bounce, 
Toddler, Outdoor, Pajama, and Preschool), Afternoon Adventures, Children’s Author visit, 
Star Wars, Teen Book Club, and PAWS. We delivered a total of 150 books for the Reading 
at the Barbershop program! 

Total attendance for outreach programs was 750. These included the Mobile Library school 
visits, Reading at the Barbershop, Youth Roundtable, and the City of Vacaville Bunnies & 
Bonnets. 
Upcoming events highlights include:   

 Touch A Truck: Thursday, June 15th, 4:00 – 5:00 PM. Join us in the parking lot of the
Vacaville Town Square Library for an up-close look at some amazing vehicles!
Garbage truck, tow truck, rescue vehicle and more will be available for kids to
explore and ask questions.

 CMC Reptiles: Monday, June 19th, 11:00 – 11:45 AM. Get an up-close look at some
cool reptiles!

 The Waterbeat with Zun Zun: Thursday, June 22nd, 4:00 – 4:45 PM. Kids will enjoy
music and movement while learning about water conservation, aquatic life and water
science. This humorous, high-energy show is multilingual and includes lots of
audience participation!

 Bugs with the Bohart Museum of Entomology: Monday, July 3rd, 11:00 – 11:45 AM.
Creepy crawly critters will dazzle and entertain guests as the Bohart Museum displays
a variety of insect specimens. All ages are welcome!

There were no suspensions for inappropriate use of the Internet during the reporting period. 

Respectfully submitted, 
Johnny Parker 
Supervising Librarian 
Solano County Library  



VACAVILLE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT LIBRARY DISTRICT 
AUDITOR PRESENTATION AGENDA 

June 12, 2023 

The following communications are required by Generally Accepted Auditing Standards: 

Items presented include 2021 and 2020 audited financial statements, governance letter, management letter and 
appropriations limit report. 

Auditor’s responsibility under generally accepted auditing standards 
Unmodified opinion (clean opinion) 
Emphasis of a matter paragraph for restatements refers to footnote H to accrue public facilities fees receivable 

and interest payable on the RDA note. 

The scope of the audit was not consistent with the engagement letter because County audit staff did not provide 
adjustments to County Auditor and fund balance did not roll forward plus County audit staff would not 
provide its trial balance and made it difficult to review prior audit workpapers.  There were no disagreements 
with management, no new major issues discussed with management prior to retention or management 
consultation with other auditors that we are aware of. 

Management’s discussion and analysis on pages 3 to 8 provides an executive summary of activity. 

Discussion of financial statements (p9 to 14) 
Government-wide statements on pages 9 and 10 use full accrual basis with long-term assets and liabilities 

recognized. Unrestricted net position was $15.2 and $12.7 million in 2021 and 2020 and net income was 
$3.2 and $2.4 million.  Recon between General Fund and government-wide is on pages 12 & 14.  
Restatement exists in 2020 to accrue impact fees receivable and accrued interest payable on RDA loan.  

General Fund had $18.3 and $15.0 million of assets in 2021 and 2020 and $18.3 and $15.0 million of fund 
balance, $15.2 and $12.7 of the fund balance was unrestricted.  That is over 3 years of expenditures.  $3.2 
and $2.3 million of fund balance represented restricted public facilities fees.   

General Fund had $3.4 and $2.6 of net income in 2021 and 2020.  A true-up entry is posted to reflect actual 
costs for the County professional services.  

Footnotes 
Note A starting on page 15 discloses accounting policies.  
See what public facilities fees are restricted for added on page 16. 
Outstanding loan to the Vacaville RDA is on page 21.  Subsequent event note discloses it was paid-off.  
Changes in public facilities fees are reported on page 22. 
Commitment for tax sharing dispute with Dixon Public Library District is shown on page 22. 
Note F on page 22 discloses service agreement with County with the credits provided. 
Restatement is disclosed in Note H on page 23. 
A lease liability and asset under GASB 87 will need to be reported for the lease disclosed in Note I on page 

23 in 2022. 
Required Supplementary Information 

General Fund budget vs. actual statement on page 24 and 25 shows 2021 revenues $1.4 million over budget 
and expenditures $178K under budget.  2020 revenues were $720K over budget and expenditures $609K 
under budget.   

Appropriations limit appeared to have a difference in the 2020 amount used that should be corrected 

Management letter  

Significant estimates include the depreciable lives of capital assets, liabilities accrued and amount recorded for 
County professional services expenditures. 

Audit adjustments – We posted 35 audit adjustments during the audit, which is considered a deficiency in 
financial reporting.  The Admin Services Manager should make sure entries for the 2021 audit are reflected 
in the 2022 and 2023 County general ledgers prior to the next audit so fund balance rolls and should make 
sure receivables and payables not recorded by the County are posted before the audit.  

Attachment 3













































































TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

DATE: 

SOLANO COUNTY LIBRARY 

Vacaville Unified School Board/Library Board of Trustees 

Suzanne Olawski, Director of Library Services 

Proposed FY 2023/24 Budget for the Vacaville Public Library 

June 15, 2023 

Attached is the budget of $15.68 million for the Vacaville Library District for FY2023/24. This amount is 

approximately $520,534 less than the FY2022/23 revised budget which your Board passed in September 

2023. Since this budget is the operating budget, it is exclusive of the $15 million that you have set aside in a 
reserve fund. The budget is balanced with a good-sized contingency. 

Some line items on the budget document are: 

Line 2055 Insurance shows a projected 20% increase this year as the insurance agent for both facilities is 
anticipating an increase in rates. 

Line 2140 Building Maintenance shows an increase of $60,000 for potential lighting upgrades at the Town 
Square Library. 

Line 2235 Accounting/Financial Services shows a slight decrease in audit costs. 

Line 2236 Consulting Services shows an increase of$20,000 for Town Square lighting consultation services. 

Line 2250 Charge for Service for operating the Vacaville libraries shows an increase over due to an increase 
in salaries and benefits and higher utility costs. 

Line 4202 Construction in Progress shows an increase for continued planning and design services for the 
renovation and expansion of the Cultural Center Library. 

Line 8101 Contingencies shows a decrease due to increased expenditures inclusive of Construction in 
Progress and Charge for Service, and a decrease in the fund balance. 

Line 8301 Reserves shows an increase due to allocating additional funds to the Vacaville Cultural Center 
Library project. 

Lines 9001 shows small increase of $240,658 in property tax revenue. 

Line 9015 shows a small increase in sales tax revenue. 

Line 9401 Interest shows an increase of $188,300 reflective of current economic trends. 

Line 9704 Developer Impact Fees shows a decrease of $183,498 as the number of building permits declined. 

Line 9806 Fund Balance Available shows a decrease of$728,880 due to long-term loan payoff this fiscal year, 
offset by an increase in property tax and interest income. 

Attachment 4


























	5-08-23 Vac Commission Update -TRf.pdf
	Vacaville Cultural Center Library Renovation
	Project Background
	Project Goals
	Requested Actions
	Next Steps
	Delivery – Construction Manager at Risk (CMAR)
	Design Development
	Initial Concept Design, 2017
	Lot Line Adjustment, August 2019
	Existing Conditions
	Community Engagement
	Program Scoping Study, June 2022
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15
	Slide Number 16
	Slide Number 17
	Slide Number 18
	Slide Number 19
	Slide Number 20
	Funding Sources
	Proposed Project Budget
	CMAR Delivery:
	Schedule
	Requested Actions
	Next Steps
	Questions?

	5-11-23 Vac Commission Update -TR sorev.pdf
	Vacaville Cultural Center Library Renovation
	Project Background
	Project Goals
	Requested Actions
	Next Steps
	Delivery – Construction Manager at Risk (CMAR)
	Design Development
	Initial Concept Design, 2017
	Lot Line Adjustment, August 2019
	Existing Conditions
	Community Engagement
	Program Scoping Study, June 2022
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15
	Slide Number 16
	Slide Number 17
	Slide Number 18
	Slide Number 19
	Slide Number 20
	Funding Sources
	Proposed Project Budget
	CMAR Delivery:
	Schedule
	Requested Actions
	Next Steps
	Questions?

	5-08-23 Vac Commission Update -TRf.pdf
	Vacaville Cultural Center Library Renovation
	Project Background
	Project Goals
	Requested Actions
	Next Steps
	Delivery – Construction Manager at Risk (CMAR)
	Design Development
	Initial Concept Design, 2017
	Lot Line Adjustment, August 2019
	Existing Conditions
	Community Engagement
	Program Scoping Study, June 2022
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15
	Slide Number 16
	Slide Number 17
	Slide Number 18
	Slide Number 19
	Slide Number 20
	Funding Sources
	Proposed Project Budget
	CMAR Delivery:
	Schedule
	Requested Actions
	Next Steps
	Questions?

	5-11-23 Vac Commission Update -TR sorev.pdf
	Vacaville Cultural Center Library Renovation
	Project Background
	Project Goals
	Requested Actions
	Next Steps
	Delivery – Construction Manager at Risk (CMAR)
	Design Development
	Initial Concept Design, 2017
	Lot Line Adjustment, August 2019
	Existing Conditions
	Community Engagement
	Program Scoping Study, June 2022
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15
	Slide Number 16
	Slide Number 17
	Slide Number 18
	Slide Number 19
	Slide Number 20
	Funding Sources
	Proposed Project Budget
	CMAR Delivery:
	Schedule
	Requested Actions
	Next Steps
	Questions?


